

Clark County, Nevada Department of Juvenile Justice Services

STATISTICAL REPORT Calendar Year 2023

APPLICATIONS, RESEARCH, AND TECHNOLOGY UNIT FamilyTRACS 2.0

Table of Contents

I.		1
П.	DEPARTMENT INFORMATION	2
	A. How a case works its way through the DJJS	3
III.	STATE OF NEVADA AND CLARK COUNTY STATISTICS	4
		_
IV.	YOUTH PROFILES	
	 A. Demographic Information. 1. Youth Male Population by Age Group (2023 Total – 164,610) 	
	 Youth Female Population by Age Group (2023 Total – 104,010) Youth Female Population by Age Group (2023 Total – 157,284) 	
	 Youth Population by Gender (2023 Total – 321,894) 	
	 Youth Population by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Total – 321,094)	
	 CCSD Population by Ethnicity/Race- All Grade Levels (2023 Total – 221,094). 	
	 B. Background Information on Referred Youth Population 	
	1. Gender of Referred Youth (2023 Referred Youth – 7,094)	
	 2. Ethnicity/Race of Referred Youth (2023 Referred Youth – 7,094) 	
	 Referrals at Age of Referred Youth (Referred Youth – 7,094) 	
	4. Household Composition of Referred Youth by Ethnicity/Race	8
	 Recorded Youth Gang Affiliation from Referred Population (2023 Total – 79) 	
	6. Youth with Prior Referrals Within 3 Years	9
	7. Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referrals Within 3 Years	
	8. Youth with a Felony or Gross Misdemeanor (F/GM) Referral	
	9. Top Ten Zip Codes of Referred Youth Population	19
	10. Percentage Summary of Referred Youth Population in 2023	20
v		20
۷.	REFERRAL STATISTICS A. Total Number of Referrals Compared to the Number of Involved Youth	
	B. Referral Types	
	C. Sources of Referrals	
	D. Time of Offense	
	E. Top Ten Presenting Offenses	
	F. Top Ten Presenting Felony/Gross Misdemeanor Offenses	
	G. Prior Referral Statistics	
	H. Writ of Attachment Statistics	
VI.	DIVERSION STATISTICS	37
VII	. DISTRICT ATTORNEY STATISTICS	38
	A. Cases Filed by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Referrals Filed – 3,322)	
	B. Top 10 Offenses Filed in 2023	
	C. Top 10 Filed F/GM Offenses in 2023	39
	D. Youth Filed Directly with the Adult Court System by Ethnicity/Race	

VIII. COURT DISPOSITIONS	41
A. Formal Probation Dispositions by Ethnicity/Race (2023– 1,426)	41
B. SMYC Dispositions by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Distinct Youth –132)	
C. DCFS Commitments by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Committed Youth - 187)	
D. Certifications by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Certified Youth - 81)	
IX. BOOKING & DETENTION STATISTICS	44
A. Bookings (2023 – 4,113)	44
B. Detention Utilization (2023 Detention Placements – 2,077)	
C. Detention Average Length of Stay (2023 ALOS – 29 Days)	
D. Detention Average Daily Population (2023 ADP - 167)	
X. ALTERNATIVES TO DETENTION	47
A. Intensive Supervision Unit (ISU)	
B. Electronic Monitoring (EM)	
5()	
XI. SPRING MOUNTAIN YOUTH CAMP STATISTICS	48
A. Utilization (2023 Placements - 165)	
B. Average Length of Stay (2023 ALOS – 163 Days)	49
C. Average Daily Population (2023 ADP – 71)	
5 7 1 1 1	
XII. FORMAL PROBATION STATISTICS	51
A. Formal Probation Caseload (2023 – 3,371)	
B. Average Formal Probation Caseload per Month (2023 – 1,940)	51
C. Average Probation Status Length (2023 Average – 449 Days)	
XIII. THE HARBOR	53
XIV. TRUANCY PREVENTION OUTREACH PROGRAM	EG
XV. SUMMARY	60

I. Introduction

The issues surrounding juvenile delinquency are complex and multifaceted. In particular, these issues may involve: education, family structure, mental health, social economics, and support systems. To bring about a more positive impact towards reducing juvenile delinquency, each of these areas should continue to be addressed through programs, policies, and community organizations. Based on this premise, the Department of Juvenile Justice Services (DJJS) actively seeks collaborative partnerships with various government entities, community organizations, and the general public.

By increasing the involvement of stakeholders in the juvenile justice system of care, the objective is to develop and implement solutions that address the root causes of juvenile delinquency. By addressing the source of the issue, the intended byproduct is preventing the offense from occurring in the first place. In time, these proactive measures would thereby reduce the number of youth referrals to the DJJS.

In order to successfully identify the source of the issues, information sharing is critical. To effectively create solutions, stakeholders must make evidence-based decisions. With the juvenile justice information system (FamilyTRACS), the DJJS commits to providing its stakeholders with the relevant statistics necessary to make informed policy or program decisions. The following annual statistical report is one example of the department's commitment to sharing information.

The annual statistical report begins by providing background information on DJJS. Then the report illustrates how a case works its way through the department. Next, the report provides statistics related to the State of Nevada and Clark County. Finally, the remaining sections are devoted to a collection of reports that have been generated through the FamilyTRACS database.

The reports from the database were selected as a means to provide an overview to the juvenile justice system. The objective of this overview is to provide stakeholders with access to valuable information relating to the dynamics of juvenile delinquency in Clark County. Additionally, the summary may be useful in planning for additional services and improved processes throughout the system of care for our community's juvenile population. The reports are by no means all-inclusive. The report will continue to evolve, as there is a progressive demand for more information.

II. Department Information

The DJJS is a unique and complex public service agency that performs more than the traditional Juvenile Court functions of Probation and Detention. In particular, DJJS provides intervention services, guidance and control for youth referred to the department for acts of delinquency.

To accomplish its mission, the department consists of the following divisions: Administration, Health Care Services, Detention, Probation, and the Spring Mountain Youth Camp (SMYC).

The Administration Division is responsible for managing the daily business operations of the department. Daily operations would include Human Resources, Records, Financial Services, and responding to public inquiries. Along with daily operations, this division is responsible for the Payment Center, which receives payments for court ordered fines, fees, restitution, and custodial reimbursements. Also, under Administration is the Applications Technology & Research Unit (ART), tasks to the development and support of the information technology needs of the department. The ART unit also maintains and generates data for statistical, performance, and management reporting.

The Health Care Services provides a full spectrum of assessment and treatment services to the youth involved with the DJJS and their families. These evaluations, counseling and other treatment services are offered in the institutions, in home and through office visits.

The Detention Center is a 192-bed facility located at the DJJS campus. The facility temporarily houses male and female youth with pending court hearings or correctional placements. In order to bridge the system of care, this facility provides medical and mental health services.

The Probation Division provides intake and diversionary services to youth referred to the department for acts of delinquency. For adjudicated youth, the division provides supervision and treatment services. Services are provided on the DJJS campus, within the five neighborhood community centers, or within the community itself.

The SMYC is a staff-secure 100-bed correctional facility, which houses male youth between the ages of twelve and eighteen who have been adjudicated for serious or repeat delinquent acts by the Juvenile Court Judge. SMYC is located at Angels Peak in the Mt. Charleston Recreational/Toiyabe National Forest Area.



A. How a case works its way through the DJJS

ACRU - Assessment & Court Report Unit

CHINs - Child in Need of Supervision/NRS 62-D (Competency) DA - District Attorney

DCFS - Department of Child and Family Services (State)

PWOS - Probation Without Supervision

SEY/CSEC - Sexually Exploited Youth/Commercial Sexual Exploitation of Children SMYC - Spring Mountain Youth Camp

SOARS - Sexual Offense Assessment & Rehabilitation Services

III. State of Nevada and Clark County Statistics

- The entire state of Nevada covers an area of 110,567 square miles.
- Clark County covers an area of 8,012 square miles (about 7% of the entire state)
- 2023 Population Statistics:
- The population of the entire state is estimated at 3,307,371.
- The population of Clark County is estimated at 2,457,553 (about 74% of the entire state)
- The youth population (ages 8-17) of Clark County is estimated at 321,894.
- The Clark County School District (CCSD) had an enrollment of 292,400 students.

Sources: Nevada State Demographer projection from 2020, Clark County School District.

IV. Youth Profiles

The "Youth Profiles" segment provides demographic and background information on the clients we serve at the DJJS. This segment is divided into two sections. The first section details the demographic information of the Clark County youth population in 2023. This information has been collected from Nevada's State Demographer's Office and the Clark County School District (CCSD). The charts in this section address the demographic areas of age, gender, and ethnicity/race. The second section details demographic information that is specific to the referred youth population to the DJJS. This section's information has been retrieved from the DJJS database.

Note: All percentages in this report are rounded to the nearest whole number.

A. Demographic Information



1. Youth Male Population by Age Group (2023 Total – 164,610)

2. Youth Female Population by Age Group (2023 Total – 157,284)



3. Youth Population by Gender (2023 Total – 321,894)





4. Youth Population by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Total – 321,894)

5. CCSD Population by Ethnicity/Race- All Grade Levels (2023 Total – 292,400)



B. Background Information on Referred Youth Population

This section provides a basic overview of some characteristics of the referred youth population. The ethnicity/race, age at referral, gang affiliation, prior referrals, and zips. For 2023, the total number of referrals to the DJJS was 9,412. The distinct referred youth population was 7,094.

1. Gender of Referred Youth (2023 Referred Youth – 7,094)



a) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Female	2,519	1,195	1,100	1,357	2,446	-3%
Male	4,902	2,849	2,282	2,940	4,648	-5%
Total	7,421	4,044	3,382	4,297	7,094	-4%

2. Ethnicity/Race of Referred Youth (2023 Referred Youth - 7,094)



Asian or Pacific Islander - 3%
■Black - 42%
■Hispanic - 25%
■Other - 6%
■White - 24%

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23
Asian or Pacific Islander	159	91	74	116	207	30%
Black	2,967	1,602	1,465	1,793	3,018	2%
Hispanic	2,513	1,381	1,000	1,175	1,747	-30%
Other	280	196	210	337	453	62%
White	1,502	774	633	876	1,669	11%
Total	7,421	4,044	3,382	4,297	7,094	-4%



3. Referrals at Age of Referred Youth (Referred Youth – 7,094)

REFERRALS											
Age	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%					
8	5	6	1	4	8	60%					
9	8	7	5	4	4	-50%					
10	89	41	28	41	73	-18%					
11	265	87	91	138	285	8%					
12	600	264	198	322	602	0%					
13	1,141	516	428	507	1,024	-10%					
14	1,773	848	693	969	1,496	-16%					
15	2,565	1,208	936	1,230	2,055	-20%					
16	2,584	1,361	1,050	1,281	1,876	-27%					
17	2,347	1,357	1,107	1,334	1,799	-23%					
18+	356	122	102	133	190	-47%					
Total	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%					

a) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

4. Household Composition of Referred Youth by Ethnicity/Race

*DJJS migrated to a new system in February 2020. The categories have changed, we will report on this as soon as data are collected.

As the age of the youth may change with multiple referral dates, each referral is counted.

5. Recorded Youth Gang Affiliation from Referred Population (2023 Total – 79)

The following chart illustrates youth gang affiliations, as they are recorded within the DJJS database. Gang affiliations are self-reported. The statistics are retrieved based on the date of the referral. The statistics below are from 2023:



a) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian or Pacific Islander	1	0	0	0	0	-100%
Black	62	31	28	16	32	-48%
Hispanic	52	47	25	32	38	-27%
Other	3	5	2	2	2	-33%
White	5	3	2	2	7	40%
Total	123	86	57	52	79	-36%

6. Youth with Prior Referrals Within 3 Years

The following statistics illustrate whether a youth had a prior referral within three (3) years of their referral to the DJJS. After providing an overview for the entire referred youth population, specific details will be provided for each ethnicity/race category. In 2023, approximately 33% of those referred to the department had a prior referral.

a) Summary Prior Referral Statistics (2023 Total Youth – 7,094)



■Youth with Prior Referrals - 33%

■Youth with No Prior Referrals - 67%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Referrals	3,675	2,210	1,479	1,643	2,334	-36%
Youth with No Prior Record	3,746	1,834	1,903	2,654	4,760	27%
Total	7,421	4,044	3,382	4,297	7,094	-4%

b) Prior Referral Statistics for African American/Black Youth (2023 Referred Total – 3,018)



■Youth with Prior Referrals - 41%

■Youth with No Prior Referrals - 59%

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Referrals		1,000	744	849	1,231	-25%
Youth with No Prior Record		602	721	944	1,787	34%
Total	2,967	1,602	1,465	1,793	3,018	2%

c) Prior Referral Statistics for Asian/Pacific Islander Youth (2023 Referred Total - 207)



■Youth with Prior Referrals - 18%

■Youth with No Prior Referrals - 82%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Referrals	54	41	21	34	37	-31%
Youth with No Prior Record	105	50	53	82	170	62%
Total	159	91	74	116	207	30%

d) Prior Referral Statistics for Hispanic Youth (2023 Referred Total – 1,747)



■Youth with Prior Referrals - 35%

■Youth with No Prior Referrals - 65%

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Referrals	1,172	705	422	426	618	-47%
Youth with No Prior Record	1,341	676	578	749	1,129	-16%
Total	2,513	1,381	1,000	1,175	1,747	-30%



e) Prior Referral Statistics for White Youth (2023 Referred Total – 1,669)

■Youth with No Prior Referrals - 79%

■Youth with Prior Referrals - 21%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Referrals	646	355	205	241	345	-47%
Youth with No Prior Record	856	419	428	635	1,324	55%
Total	1,502	774	633	876	1,669	11%

f) Percentage Comparison of Youth with Prior Referrals by Ethnicity/Race



7. Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referrals Within 3 Years

The following statistics illustrate whether a youth had a prior adjudicated referral within three (3) years of their referral to the DJJS. After providing an overview for the entire referred youth population, specific details will be provided for each ethnicity/race category. In 2023, approximately 15% of those referred to the department had a prior adjudicated referral.

a) Summary Prior Adjudicated Referral Statistics (2023 Referred Youth – 7,094)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referrals	1,763	1,171	792	889	1,096	-38%
Youth with No Prior Adjudicated Referrals	5,658	2,873	2,590	3,408	5,998	6%
Total	7,421	4,044	3,382	4,297	7,094	-4%

b) Prior Adjudicated Referral Statistics for African American/Black Youth (2023 Referred Youth – 3,018)



■Youth with Prior Adj Referrals - 21%

■ Youth with No Prior Adj Referrals - 79%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referrals	817	554	417	458	619	-24%
Youth with No Prior Adjudicated Referrals	2,150	1,048	1,048	1,335	2,399	12%
Total	2967	1602	1465	1793	3018	2%

c) Prior Adjudicated Referral Statistics for Asian/Pacific Islander Youth (2023 Referred Youth - 207)



■Youth with Prior Adj Referrals - 4%

■ Youth with No Prior Adj Referrals - 96%

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referrals	22	15	8	14	9	-59%
Youth with No Prior Adjudicated Referrals	137	76	66	102	198	45%
Total	159	91	74	116	207	30%

 d) Prior Adjudicated Referral Statistics for Hispanic Youth (2023 Referred Youth Total – 1,747)



■Youth with Prior Adj Referrals - 16%

■Youth with No Adj Prior Referrals - 84%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referrals	573	395	236	229	280	-51%
Youth with No Prior Adjudicated Referrals	1,940	986	764	946	1,467	-24%
Total	2,513	1,381	1,000	1,175	1,747	-30%

e) Prior Adjudicated Referral Statistics for White Youth (2023 Referred Youth – 1,669)



■Youth with Prior Adj Referrals - 8%

■Youth with No Prior Adj Referrals - 92%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referrals	262	151	89	123	128	-51%
Youth with No Prior Adjudicated Referrals	1,240	623	544	753	1,541	24%
Total	1,502	774	633	876	1,669	11%

f) Percentage Comparison of Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referrals by Ethnicity/Race



8. Youth with a Felony or Gross Misdemeanor (F/GM) Referral

The following statistics illustrate whether a youth had a felony or gross misdemeanor referral in the year indicated. After providing an overview for the entire referred youth population, specific details will be provided for each ethnicity/race category. In 2023, approximately 32% of youth referred to the department had a felony or gross misdemeanor referral.

a) Summary of Youth Charged with a F/GM (2023 Referred Youth – 7,094)



1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with a F/GM Referral	2,597	1,620	1,680	2,025	2,287	-12%
Youth without a F/GM Referral	4,824	2,424	1,702	2,272	4,807	0%
Total	7,421	4,044	3,382	4,297	7,094	-4%

b) African American/Black Youth Charged with F/GM (2023 Referred Youth – 3,018)



■Youth with a F/GM Referral - 37%

■Youth without a F/GM Referral - 63%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with a F/GM Referral	1,106	694	770	940	1,104	0%
Youth without a F/GM Referral	1,861	908	695	853	1,914	3%
Total	2,967	1,602	1,465	1,793	3,018	2%

c) Asian/Pacific Islander Youth Charged with a F/GM (2023 Referred Youth - 207)



■Youth with a F/GM Referral - 29%
■Youth without a F/GM Referral - 71%

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with a F/GM Referral	48	31	33	58	59	23%
Youth without a F/GM Referral	111	60	41	58	148	33%
Total	159	91	74	116	207	30%

d) Hispanic Youth Charged with a F/GM (2023 Referred Youth – 1,747)



■Youth with a F/GM Referral - 38% ■Youth without a F/GM Referral - 62%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with a F/GM Referral	859	550	495	600	667	-22%
Youth without a F/GM Referral	1,654	831	505	575	1,080	-35%
Total	2,513	1,381	1,000	1,175	1,747	-30%

e) White Youth Charged with a F/GM (2023 Referred Youth – 1,669)



■Youth with a F/GM Referral - 19%

■Youth without a F/GM Referral - 81%

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Youth with a F/GM Referral	457	269	277	281	325	-29%
Youth without a F/GM Referral	1,045	505	356	595	1,344	29%
Total	1,502	774	633	876	1,669	11%



f) Percentage Comparison of F/GM Referrals by Ethnicity/Race

9. Top Ten Zip Codes of Referred Youth Population

The following top ten zip codes account for 38.4% of the referred youth in 2023.

a) Referrals by Top Ten Zip Codes of Referred Youth



b) Percentage of Overall Referrals by Top Ten Zip Codes



c) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
89115	665	315	254	309	548	-18%
89101	635	336	246	321	415	-35%
89030	592	241	176	252	438	-26%
89110	556	240	213	237	382	-31%
89121	513	262	198	258	313	-39%
89108	462	230	156	217	343	-26%
89031	428	174	170	206	390	-9%
89106	336	172	139	181	252	-25%
89032	298	142	129	201	267	-10%
89015	391	190	104	126	219	-44%
Others	6,857	3,515	2,854	3,655	5,845	-15%
Total	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%

10. Percentage Summary of Referred Youth Population in 2023

- Gender: Male- 66%, Female- 34%
- Ethnicity/Race: African American/Black- 42%, Asian/Pacific Islander- 3%, Hispanic- 25%, White- 24%, Others- 6%
- Age at Referrals: 15-17 Group- 61%
- Self-Reported Gang Affiliation: 1% of Referred Youth Population
- Youth with Prior Referral(s) within the past 3 years: 33% of Referred Youth Population
- Youth with Prior Adjudicated Referral(s) within the past 3 years: 15% of Referred Youth Population
- Youth with a F/GM Referrals: 32% of Referred Youth Population
- Top Ten Zip Codes: 38% of all referred youth.

V. <u>Referral Statistics</u>

A referral is an action that involves bringing a youth to the attention of the DJJS. This section outlines the total number of referrals compared to the number of involved youths, the types of referrals, sources of referrals, time of offense, presenting offenses, the number of prior referrals, the number of prior adjudicated referrals and Writ of Attachment statistics.



A. Total Number of Referrals Compared to the Number of Involved Youth

1. 5-Year Percentage Difference

-	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Referrals	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%
Youth	7,421	4,044	3,382	4,297	7,094	-4%

B. Referral Types

Referrals to the Clark County DJJS are received in a variety of ways. A majority of youth comes to the attention of the DJJS through a Juvenile Referral which includes *citation*, *arrest, field booking and ICOJ*. Citation involves law enforcement recording the charges of the youth and directing them to appear for an appointment at the Intake division of the DJJS. This process is similar to receiving a *Traffic* ticket. Law Enforcement Arrest is when a youth is physically taken to the DJJS to be booked and evaluated for detainment. Field bookings is when charges are added to a youth's record without having the youth physically brought into Booking. ICOJ stands for Interstate Compact on Juveniles, which is a formal process between states where a youth is placed under supervision in one state and supervised in another. Another referral types are *Juvenile Traffic Citation* and *Summons* or a *Writ* of Attachment, which are court generated documents that require a youth to appear in court.

1. Referral Types (2023 Total Referrals - 9,412)



a) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Juvenile Referral	11,725	5,013	3,940	4,926	8,422	-28%
Juvenile Traffic	0	94	118	370	385	-
Summons/Writs	8	710	581	667	605	-41%
Total	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%

C. Sources of Referrals

The following statistics illustrate the agency, law enforcement group, or entity that brought a referral to the attention of the DJJS.

1. Top Five Sources of Referrals



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
LVMPD	4,129	3,008	2,490	2,689	3,503	-15%
CCSD Police	3,788	970	1,018	1,782	3,714	-2%
DJJS	1,337	523	203	311	526	-61%
HPD	807	448	295	375	560	-31%
NLVPD	687	418	283	366	549	-20%
Other	153	88	62	63	111	-27%
Youth Parole Bureau	143	88	74	77	91	-36%
NHP	48	47	55	127	154	221%
Mesquite PD	115	58	55	43	63	-45%
Boulder City PD	134	55	31	51	49	-63%
District Court	219	26	0	0	0	-100%
Las Vegas City Marshal	84	41	37	25	33	-61%
Clark County Park Police	18	10	6	19	11	-39%
DCFS	33	2	1	0	0	-100%
Others	38	35	29	35	48	26%
Total	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%

D. Time of Offense

The following statistics represent the time of the youth's alleged offense. The first section is a line graph that illustrates the number of referrals that corresponds to the offense time. Using the graph, the lowest point is around 5:00am and the highest point is at about 10:00am. The second section is the historical statistics for the past five years.



1. Referrals by Time of Offense

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
12:00 AM	328	199	110	177	205	-38%
1:00 AM	308	173	102	111	187	-39%
2:00 AM	251	142	71	97	155	-38%
3:00 AM	232	88	78	57	122	-47%
4:00 AM	172	89	49	38	81	-53%
5:00 AM	100	61	32	43	42	-58%
6:00 AM	71	43	46	62	69	-3%
7:00 AM	231	95	88	158	303	31%
8:00 AM	488	203	160	231	518	6%
9:00 AM	931	262	182	377	645	-31%
10:00 AM	1,069	275	248	379	740	-31%
11:00 AM	922	299	249	317	685	-26%
12:00 PM	876	310	287	403	713	-19%
1:00 PM	903	329	257	364	676	-25%
2:00 PM	817	286	231	344	554	-32%
3:00 PM	727	310	242	267	431	-41%
4:00 PM	609	285	243	283	384	-37%
5:00 PM	483	263	225	252	339	-30%
6:00 PM	426	242	168	239	367	-14%
7:00 PM	413	191	191	232	355	-14%
8:00 PM	364	217	208	210	308	-15%
9:00 PM	369	261	199	200	282	-24%
10:00 PM	324	193	179	195	253	-22%
11:00 PM	309	230	178	196	250	-19%
Unknown	10	771	616	731	748	-
Total	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%

E. Top Ten Presenting Offenses

1. **Percentage of Top 10 Presenting Offenses –** The top 10 presenting offenses are 48% of total offenses count in 2023.



	2020	2021	2022	2023	20-23%
BATTERY	1,280	1,195	1,437	1,975	54%
BATTERY DV	876	969	1,061	1,209	38%
VIOLATION OF PROBATION/PAROLE	839	492	691	961	15%
MINOR IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR DEADLY WEAPON	369	429	656	729	98%
OBSTRUCTING AN OFFICER	532	344	372	698	31%
POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE - MARIJUANA	295	246	386	971	229%
ROBBERY	433	378	553	463	7%
AFFRAY/FIGHTING	187	256	352	1,022	447%
BURGLARY	391	274	341	410	5%
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT ROBBERY	286	283	450	323	13%
Others	7,633	6,044	7,579	10,216	34%
Total	13,121	10,910	13,878	18,977	45%

F. Top Ten Presenting Felony/Gross Misdemeanor Offenses

1. **Percentage of Felony/Gross Misdemeanor Offenses -** The top 10 FGM charges account for 47% of total FGM offenses in 2023.



	2020	2021	2022	2023	20-23%
BATTERY	386	543	666	519	34%
ROBBERY	433	378	553	463	7%
BURGLARY	391	274	341	410	5%
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT ROBBERY	286	283	450	323	13%
POSSESSION OF STOLEN VEHICLE	245	169	241	543	122%
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY	262	163	209	336	28%
LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER 14 YEARS OF AGE	245	284	202	177	-28%
ASSAULT	231	163	236	257	11%
SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE	241	231	158	161	-33%
MINOR IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR DEADLY WEAPON	121	128	209	275	127%
Others	3,288	2,912	3,299	4,383	33%
Total	6,129	5,528	6,564	7,847	28%

G. Prior Referral Statistics

1. Number of Prior Referrals

The following statistics illustrate the number of prior referrals that a youth had when they were referred in 2023 to the DJJS. After providing an overview for all referrals, specific details will be provided for each ethnicity/race category.

a) Summary of Prior Referrals (2023 Referrals – 9,412)



1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	1,866	964	674	970	1,614	-14%
2	1,186	623	390	536	786	-34%
3	813	408	277	348	472	-42%
4	644	329	220	238	300	-53%
5	502	254	180	173	198	-61%
6+	2,360	1,244	813	776	649	-73%
None	4,362	1,995	2,085	2,922	5,393	24%
Total	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%

b) Prior Referral Statistics for African American/Black Youth (2023 Referrals – 4,316)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	775	403	312	491	804	4%
2	546	276	179	285	417	-24%
3	383	199	152	180	286	-25%
4	281	170	112	122	177	-37%
5	214	131	104	88	114	-47%
6+	1,218	618	512	451	384	-68%
None	1,592	675	800	1,091	2,134	34%
Total	5,009	2,472	2,171	2,708	4,316	-14%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

c) Prior Referral Statistics for Asian/Pacific Islander Youth (2023 Referrals - 231)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	35	22	12	17	32	-9%
2	14	10	5	14	5	-64%
3	9	8	1	9	1	-89%
4	5	4	3	3	4	-20%
5	6	4	1	2	3	-50%
6+	17	10	7	5	3	-82%
None	115	57	58	92	183	59%
Total	201	115	87	142	231	15%

d) Prior Referral Statistics for Hispanic Youth (2023 Referrals – 2,366)



1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

_	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	617	311	193	279	468	-24%
2	374	195	115	127	234	-37%
3	265	125	69	78	115	-57%
4	224	106	58	54	61	-73%
5	177	80	46	41	42	-76%
6+	688	404	188	168	145	-79%
None	1,529	723	634	811	1,301	-15%
Total	3,874	1,944	1,303	1,558	2,366	-39%

e) Prior Referral Statistics for White Youth (2023 Referrals – 1,970)



1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

_	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	366	184	120	146	252	-31%
2	206	102	63	77	104	-50%
3	119	44	35	48	50	-58%
4	107	35	28	36	42	-61%
5	80	32	15	26	27	-66%
6+	310	158	68	89	81	-74%
None	980	447	457	677	1,414	44%
Total	2,168	1,002	786	1,099	1,970	-9 %

f) Summary of the Number of Prior Referrals by Ethnicity and the Percentage of Overall Referrals in 2023



2. Number of Prior Adjudicated Referrals

The following statistics illustrate the number of prior adjudicated referrals that a youth had when they were referred in 2023 to the DJJS. Unlike the previous section, the prior referrals must be adjudicated. After providing an overview for all referrals, specific details will be provided for each ethnicity/race category.

a) Summary of the Number of Prior Adjudicated Referrals (2023 Referrals – 9,412)



1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	1,752	926	621	885	1,094	-38%
2	1,012	533	341	441	444	-56%
3	673	331	226	215	247	-63%
4	398	225	113	137	129	-68%
5	288	148	120	74	94	-67%
6+	508	266	184	129	127	-75%
None	7,102	3,388	3,034	4,082	7,277	2%
Total	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%

b) Number of Prior Adjudicated Referrals for African American/Black Youth (2023 Referrals – 4,316)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	777	435	319	450	599	-23%
2	476	252	193	247	266	-44%
3	314	159	130	125	131	-58%
4	205	109	65	70	69	-66%
5	173	64	74	43	57	-67%
6+	267	144	114	80	85	-68%
None	2,797	1,309	1,276	1,693	3,109	11%
Total	5,009	2,472	2,171	2,708	4,316	-14%

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

c) Number of Prior Adjudicated Referrals for Asian/Pacific Islander Youth (2023 Referrals - 231)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	23	15	5	15	14	-39%
2	10	6	5	5	0	-100%
3	6	4	2	1	3	-50%
4	0	3	0	2	0	-
5	0	2	1	1	0	-
6+	5	0	0	0	0	-100%
None	157	85	74	118	214	36%
Total	201	115	87	142	231	15%



d) Number of Prior Adjudicated Referrals for Hispanic Youth (2023 Referrals – 2,366)

1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	592	310	179	219	318	-46%
2	347	163	86	93	103	-70%
3	222	112	50	48	68	-69%
4	136	80	34	33	23	-83%
5	73	65	38	19	21	-71%
6+	120	80	41	33	27	-78%
None	2,384	1,134	875	1,113	1,806	-24%
Total	3,874	1,944	1,303	1,558	2,366	-39%

e) Number of Prior Adjudicated Referrals for White Youth (2023 Referrals – 1,970)



1) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
1	281	117	87	132	119	-58%
2	133	71	36	59	58	-56%
3	102	43	25	20	32	-69%
4	41	30	9	19	20	-51%
5	27	14	6	6	9	-67%
6+	68	32	17	10	12	-82%
None	1,516	695	606	853	1,720	13%
Total	2,168	1,002	786	1,099	1,970	-9%

f) Summary of the Number of Prior Adjudicated Referrals by Ethnicity and the Percentage of Overall Referrals in 2023


H. Writ of Attachment Statistics

The following statistics are based on the date the Writ of Attachment was issued, served, or quashed. There are two types of Writ of Attachments: AW- Arrest Writ and BW- Bench Writ.

1. Issued Arrest Writ Statistics by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Arrest Writs- 337



■Asian/Pacific Islander -0%)
■Black -52%	
□Hispanic -25%	
□Other -12%	
■White 11%	

a) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	7	3	4	3	0	-100%
Black	289	220	114	142	175	-39%
Hispanic	158	124	69	55	85	-46%
Other	24	17	16	27	40	67%
White	94	45	21	24	37	-61%
Total	572	409	224	251	337	-41%

2. Issued Bench Writ Statistics by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Bench Writs- 387)



Asian/Pacific Islander -1%	
■Black -54%	
∎Hispanic -28%	
■Other -7%	
■White -10%	

a) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	7	3	7	8	4	-43%
Black	332	133	108	194	211	-36%
Hispanic	196	102	46	74	108	-45%
Other	25	13	9	18	26	4%
White	77	27	23	51	38	-51%
Total	637	278	193	345	387	-39%

3. Served Arrest Writ Statistics by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Arrest Writs - 255)



■Asian/Pacific Islander -0%	
■Black -52%	
∎Hispanic -28%	
□Other -7%	
■White -13%	

a) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	6	4	4	2	0	-100%
Black	231	184	103	104	134	-42%
Hispanic	137	88	67	44	71	-48%
Other	23	14	13	19	18	-22%
White	82	41	18	26	32	-61%
Total	479	331	205	195	255	-47%

4. Served Bench Writ Statistics by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Bench Writs - 252)





	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	5	3	1	7	4	-20%
Black	233	87	74	112	143	-39%
Hispanic	151	65	45	42	68	-55%
Other	22	9	10	6	10	-55%
White	58	21	10	33	27	-53%
Total	469	185	140	200	252	-46%

5. Quashed Arrest Writ Statistics by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Arrest Writs – 72)



■Asian/Pacific Islander - 0%
■Black -38%
□Hispanic -33%
■Other -12%
■White -17%

a) Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	4	3	0	1	0	-100%
Black	96	53	25	32	27	-72%
Hispanic	59	35	18	18	24	-59%
Other	14	4	2	5	9	-36%
White	37	20	4	8	12	-68%
Total	210	115	49	64	72	-66%

6. Quashed Bench Writ Statistics by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Bench Writs -123)



■Asian/Pacif	ic Islander -1%
■Black - 58%	ó
□ Hispanic - 2	23%
□Other - 6%	
■White -12%)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	5	2	2	2	1	-80%
Black	209	83	29	50	71	-66%
Hispanic	104	42	19	28	29	-72%
Other	17	10	1	3	7	-59%
White	67	18	5	9	15	-78%
Total	402	155	56	92	123	-69%

VI. **Diversion Statistics**

The Probation Intake Unit provides the initial interview, evaluation and assessment with youth and families, utilizing a validated youth assessment tool that identifies a youth's initial risk level. This information is used to determine the most appropriate treatment recommendation, which includes an emphasis towards diversion services for low-risk offenders, while still holding them accountable for their actions. Some of these diversion services are:

- Diversion Court Program Intervention services/programs that redirect youth away from formal processing in the juvenile justice system.
- Further Proceedings Court Ordered disposition that places the client on supervision but defers the adjudication process based on the completion of conditional sanctions.
- Hold Open Informal diversion services that address appropriate diversion conditions of clients within a finite timeframe (Generally 30-60 days).
- Informal Supervision Refers to judicial orders for Stayed Adjudication, Dispositional Hold Open Agreement, Unsupervised Probation, Deferred Adjudications or Referred back to Intake.
- Probation without Supervision (PwoS) Formal supervision cases that were downgraded to unmonitored supervision.
- Referred to The Harbor- Outsourced agency that assesses clients to provide guidance and support.

As a referral may have more than one offense, one referral may generate multiple diversion categories. Therefore, the categories will not add up to the grand total.

DJJS migrated to a new system in February 2020, the categories have changed. This section provides diversion stats based on referral statuses.

	2021	2022	2023	21-23%
Hold Open	206	298	284	38%
Further Proceedings	59	98	60	2%
Informal Supervision	339	454	356	5%
Probation Without Supervision (PwoS)	74	63	17	-77%
Referred To Harbor	616	795	4,168	577%
Diversion Court	53	85	18	-66%
Total	998	1,303	4,510	352%

VII. District Attorney Statistics

This section illustrates statistics that are generated by the District Attorney's office. In particular, the following statistics include: the number of cases filed, the top 10 offenses filed, the top 10 F/GM offenses filed and the number of youths filed directly with the adult court system. Offense historical statistics start in 2020. DJJS migrated to a new system in February 2020, and offense details have changed.

A. Cases Filed by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Referrals Filed – 3,322)



1. Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	62	43	41	65	47	-24%
Black	2,043	1,142	1,071	1,373	1,751	-14%
Hispanic	1,475	820	644	759	932	-37%
Other	233	132	148	225	175	-25%
White	740	369	340	395	417	-44%
Total	4,553	2,506	2,244	2,817	3,322	-27%

B. Top 10 Offenses Filed in 2023. The top 10 filed offenses accounted for 49% of total offenses filed.



	2020	2021	2022	2023	20-23%
VIOLATION OF PROBATION/PAROLE	813	469	663	916	13%
BATTERY	571	714	863	659	15%
MINOR IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR DEADLY WEAPON	298	349	538	614	106%
ROBBERY	348	309	480	408	17%
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT ROBBERY	239	242	403	277	16%
BATTERY DV	200	268	342	324	62%
POSSESSION OF STOLEN VEHICLE	199	133	211	514	158%
OBSTRUCTING AN OFFICER	224	184	253	381	70%
BURGLARY	285	195	220	259	-9%
ASSAULT	203	188	227	235	16%
Others	4,106	3,534	4,050	5,057	23%
Total	7,486	6,585	8,250	9,644	29%

1. Historical Statistics (2020-2023)

C. Top 10 Filed F/GM Offenses in 2023. The top 10 filed F/GM offenses accounted for 51% of total F/GMs filed.



1. Historical Statistics (2020-2023)

	2020	2021	2022	2023	20-23%
BATTERY	305	411	524	350	15%
ROBBERY	348	309	480	408	17%
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT ROBBERY	239	242	403	277	16%
POSSESSION OF STOLEN VEHICLE	199	133	211	514	158%
BURGLARY	285	195	220	259	-9%
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY	198	132	171	301	52%
LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER 14 YEARS OF AGE	199	246	182	135	-32%
ASSAULT	163	136	192	206	26%
SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE	203	197	150	145	-29%
MINOR IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR DEADLY WEAPON	99	117	190	256	159%
Others	2,487	2,068	2,345	3,267	31%
Total	4,725	4,186	5,068	6,118	29%

D. Youth Filed Directly with the Adult Court System by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Distinct Youth – 16)



Asian/Pacific Islander - 0%	

Black - 56%

■Hispanic -25%

■Other - 6%

White - 13%

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	0	0	0	0	0	-
Black	18	17	27	8	9	-50%
Hispanic	7	12	12	3	4	-43%
Other	2	2	2	1	1	-50%
White	4	5	3	1	2	-50%
Total	31	36	44	13	16	-48%

VIII. Court Dispositions

The following statistics represent decisions made through the formal court process. To reach this level, the District Attorney has filed the charges of the referral. With the charges filed in court, each case is placed under the court's consideration. The statistic in this section details the distinct number of youths involved with each of the following court actions: Formal Probation, SMYC, DCFS commitments, and Certifications

A. Formal Probation Dispositions by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Distinct Youth – 1,426)



1. Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	33	28	14	36	37	12%
Black	747	477	343	537	662	-11%
Hispanic	685	419	278	391	463	-32%
Other	89	57	45	74	62	-30%
White	326	200	135	219	202	-38%
Total	1,880	1,181	815	1,257	1,426	-24%

B. SMYC Dispositions by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Distinct Youth –132)



1. Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	3	4	3	3	0	-100%
Black	106	72	52	91	80	-25%
Hispanic	69	51	41	31	33	-52%
Other	10	4	4	12	8	-20%
White	30	11	10	9	11	-63%
Total	218	142	110	146	132	-39%

C. DCFS Commitments by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Committed Youth - 187)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	5	3	2	4	1	-80%
Black	88	72	64	80	102	16%
Hispanic	49	45	39	31	46	-6%
Other	16	9	13	14	16	0%
White	31	23	17	21	22	-29%
Total	189	152	135	150	187	-1%

D. Certifications by Ethnicity/Race (2023 Certified Youth - 81)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	1	0	0	0	0	-100%
Black	29	17	33	29	47	62%
Hispanic	17	11	25	16	23	35%
Other	5	2	1	6	5	0%
White	5	5	0	3	6	20%
Total	57	35	59	54	81	42%

IX. Booking & Detention Statistics

This section combines statistics that are generated by the Detention division and Booking unit. Specifically, the following sections are covered: count of bookings, Detention Utilization, Detention average daily population, and average length of stay.

A. Bookings (2023 - 4,113)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	91	63	47	61	68	-25%
Black	2,383	1,345	1,114	1,358	2,015	-15%
Hispanic	1,794	1,067	769	816	1,230	-31%
Other	266	159	157	245	192	-28%
White	1,030	497	446	542	608	-41%
Total	5,564	3,131	2,533	3,022	4,113	-26%

B. Detention Utilization (2023 Detention Placements – 2,077)

This section details the number of youths held in detention at the start of the year, admitted, and released during the year, and held in detention at the end of the year.

		2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
	African American/Black	47	47	30	41	60	28%
	Asian/Pacific Islander	2	2	0	0	2	0%
Start of Year	Hispanic	35	32	21	21	30	-14%
Start Of Tear	Other	2	12	4	5	5	150%
	White	17	24	11	10	14	-18%
	Total	103	117	66	77	111	8%
	African American/Black	1,145	767	637	792	1,071	-6%
	Asian/Pacific Islander	43	34	18	35	24	-44%
New	Hispanic	772	523	406	401	607	-21%
Detentions	Other	124	77	73	132	92	-26%
	White	449	220	196	243	283	-37%
	Total	2,533	1,621	1,330	1,603	2,077	-18%
	African American/Black	1,145	785	626	773	1,025	-10%
	Asian/Pacific Islander	43	36	18	33	24	-44%
Releases	Hispanic	775	534	406	392	592	-24%
Releases	Other	114	85	72	132	93	-18%
	White	442	232	197	239	272	-38%
	Total	2,519	1,672	1,319	1,569	2,006	-20%
	African American/Black	47	30	41	60	106	126%
	Asian/Pacific Islander	2	0	0	2	2	0%
End of Year	Hispanic	32	21	21	30	45	41%
End of rear	Other	12	4	5	5	4	-67%
	White	24	11	10	14	25	4%
	Total	117	66	77	111	182	56%

C. Detention Average Length of Stay (2023 ALOS – 29 Days)



1. Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
JAN	18	21	22	21	27	52%
FEB	20	18	21	19	34	68%
MAR	18	15	24	23	28	58%
APR	17	23	21	25	20	19%
MAY	16	22	22	25	23	44%
JUNE	20	25	18	25	29	46%
JULY	23	33	18	25	31	34%
AUG	25	21	22	22	29	16%
SEP	17	24	17	24	30	78%
ОСТ	17	19	20	24	31	83%
NOV	17	29	18	32	28	66%
DEC	21	29	19	32	33	55%
Total	19	23	20	25	29	51%

D. Detention Average Daily Population (2023 ADP - 167)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
JAN	117	135	69	81	115	-2%
FEB	114	139	84	92	120	6%
MAR	113	128	82	112	142	25%
APR	137	85	69	108	160	17%
MAY	144	83	76	100	168	17%
JUNE	127	82	66	93	172	36%
JULY	129	94	66	102	175	36%
AUG	131	74	68	127	185	41%
SEP	139	78	78	131	189	36%
ОСТ	142	82	81	130	190	34%
NOV	139	101	77	143	191	38%
DEC	135	76	97	125	194	44%
Total	131	96	76	112	167	27%

X. <u>Alternatives to Detention</u>

This section illustrates statistics that are related to alternatives to detention: Intensive Supervision Unit (ISU) and Electronic Monitoring (EM). Pre-Adjudicated and Post-Adjudicated youths are eligible. ISU and Electronic Monitoring are designed to provide intensive supervision services to youth in the community rather than in the secure detention facility. EM is a high-level supervision program which requires a youth to wear an electronic tracking device (GPS). This program restrict youth to their home and permits travel only to and from school, employment, etc. Supervision includes un-scheduled on-site visits at home, school or employment, and un-scheduled phone contacts. The youth will maintain a scheduled daily routine agreed upon by the youth, parents, and ISU staff.



1. Average Monthly Population (2023 AMP – 266)

A. Intensive Supervision Unit (ISU)

B. Electronic Monitoring (EM)



1. Average Monthly Population (2023 AMP – 152)

XI. Spring Mountain Youth Camp Statistics

This section includes statistics generated from the Spring Mountain Youth Camp. The Spring Mountain Youth Camp is a staff-secure facility, which houses male youth offenders who have been adjudicated for serious or repeat delinquent acts by the Juvenile Court Judge.

A. Utilization (2023 Placements - 165)

This section details the number of youths at the camp at the start of the year, placed during the year, released during the year, and still at the camp at the end of the year.

		2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
	African American/Black	45	47	34	30	37	-18%
	Asian/Pacific Islander	0	2	3	2	0	-
Start of Year	Hispanic	22	33	16	19	14	-36%
	Other	3	4	2	1	4	33%
	White	9	14	2	4	4	-56%
	Total	79	100	58	57	60	-24%
New Placements	African American/Black	105	78	50	89	105	0%
	Asian/Pacific Islander	4	4	3	3	0	-100%
	Hispanic	77	53	44	28	39	-49%
	Other	12	4	3	12	9	-25%
	White	32	12	10	8	12	-63%
	Total	230	151	110	140	165	-28%
	African American/Black	103	91	54	82	95	-8%
	Asian/Pacific Islander	2	3	4	5	0	-100%
Releases	Hispanic	66	70	41	33	30	-55%
Neleases	Other	11	5	4	9	8	-27%
	White	27	24	8	8	11	-59%
	Total	209	193	111	137	145	-31%
	African American/Black	47	34	30	37	47	0%
	Asian/Pacific Islander	2	3	2	0	0	-100%
End of Year	Hispanic	33	16	19	14	23	-30%
	Other	4	2	1	4	5	25%
	White	14	2	4	4	5	-64%
	Total	100	58	57	60	80	-20%



B. Average Length of Stay (2023 ALOS – 163 Days)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
JAN	180	158	162	157	147	-18%
FEB	167	174	83	183	145	-13%
MAR	196	148	186	191	130	-34%
APR	158	134	164	158	173	9%
MAY	166	149	177	168	170	2%
JUNE	162	140	168	161	199	23%
JULY	125	148	146	163	139	11%
AUG	151	178	144	171	174	15%
SEP	134	167	157	169	174	29%
ОСТ	164	135	119	123	134	-18%
NOV	168	168	188	178	204	21%
DEC	131	150	168	147	166	27%
Total	159	154	155	164	163	2%

C. Average Daily Population (2023 ADP - 71)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%		
JAN	78	99	56	55	60	-22%		
FEB	78	96	54	58	60	-23%		
MAR	73	89	54	59	60	-18%		
APR	82	71	58	60	60	-27%		
MAY	97	72	50	60	61	-37%		
JUNE	100	74	45	60	77	-23%		
JULY	100	60	43	60	80	-20%		
AUG	101	55	45	60	80	-21%		
SEP	100	51	44	60	79	-21%		
ОСТ	100	47	48	60	80	-20%		
NOV	98	46	56	60	80	-18%		
DEC	98	52	59	60	80	-18%		
Total	92	68	51	60	71	-22%		

XII. Formal Probation Statistics

This section details the statistics generated by the Probation division. The following areas will be illustrated: Formal Probation by Race/Ethnicity, Average Formal Probation Caseload and Average Probation Status Length.

A. Formal Probation Caseload (2023 – 3,371)

* Count of distinct youth assigned to Formal Probation Supervision.



B. Average Formal Probation Caseload per Month (2023 – 1,940)



1. Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
JAN	1,720	2,598	1,451	1,501	1,861	8%
FEB	1,732	2,239	1,418	1,523	1,833	6%
MAR	1,757	1,950	1,408	1,605	1,811	3%
APR	1,799	1,848	1,416	1,652	1,854	3%
MAY	1,832	1,779	1,393	1,664	1,899	4%
JUNE	1,827	1,736	1,455	1,713	1,885	3%
JULY	1,838	1,707	1,432	1,728	1,853	1%
AUG	1,816	1,607	1,415	1,737	1,948	7%
SEP	1,818	1,460	1,443	1,786	2,034	12%
ОСТ	1,827	1,408	1,458	1,853	2,076	14%
NOV	1,813	1,387	1,488	1,828	2,107	16%
DEC	1,779	1,518	1,491	1,908	2,124	19%
Total	1,797	1,770	1,439	1,708	1,940	8%

C. Average Probation Status Length (2023 Average – 449 Days)



	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
JAN	371	414	557	590	519	40%
FEB	408	271	542	439	658	61%
MAR	525	253	443	424	427	-19%
APR	425	321	426	504	419	-2%
MAY	427	386	559	366	384	-10%
JUNE	419	417	425	290	359	-14%
JULY	485	470	513	278	401	-17%
AUG	353	458	458	297	410	16%
SEP	437	509	644	377	484	11%
ОСТ	450	537	462	465	382	-15%
NOV	511	475	430	257	447	-12%
DEC	374	537	432	439	493	32%
Total	432	421	491	394	449	4%

XIII. The HARBOR

The Harbor Juvenile Assessment Center aims to divert youth from the juvenile justice system. The Harbor provides assessments to determine the needs of each youth. Once the needs are determined, The Harbor staff will connect youth and families with appropriate services to address those needs. Families are referred to the following services: Family Counseling, Mental Health Counseling, Anger Management, Youth Mentorship, and Substance Abuse Counseling. This section details the statistics on the youths served by The Harbor and Total Referrals.

Youth Served in this section is defined as youth provided with in-person or phone assessment/evaluation or transported to The HARBOR by Law Enforcement.



A. Harbor Youth Served by Gender (2023 Youth Served – 5,817)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Female	2,091	1,455	1,971	2,541	2,399	15%
Male	2,998	2,077	2,597	3,591	3,417	14%
Unknown	0	0	3	1	1	-
Total	5,089	3,532	4,571	6,133	5,817	14%

B. Harbor Youth Served by Ethnicity/ Race



1. Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	153	93	127	185	179	17%
Black	1,434	957	1,391	1,907	1,742	21%
Hispanic	2,193	1,582	2,054	2,653	2,614	19%
Other	326	263	312	392	325	0%
White	983	637	687	996	957	-3%
Total	5,089	3,532	4,571	6,133	5,817	14%

C. Harbor Youth Served by Age (2023 Youth Served – 5,817)



1. Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
8-	352	303	481	443	427	21%
9	140	102	190	150	139	-1%
10	210	168	228	223	219	4%
11	304	189	319	393	354	16%
12	448	313	393	593	602	34%
13	621	452	571	841	772	24%
14	746	536	698	1,013	920	23%
15	865	531	665	1,033	1,012	17%
16	829	506	562	858	877	6%
17+	657	478	531	714	613	-7%
Total	5,089	3,532	4,571	6,133	5,817	14%

D. Top 10 Zips of Harbor Youth Served

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
89115	285	203	252	319	304	7%
89030	280	174	206	293	270	-4%
89110	233	169	235	319	281	21%
89121	217	168	200	217	249	15%
89108	233	140	168	262	215	-8%
89031	143	125	217	262	247	73%
89101	202	137	176	182	155	-23%
89032	122	107	164	215	175	43%
89122	125	112	122	178	159	27%
89104	118	80	122	169	173	47%
Others	3,131	2,117	2,709	3,717	3,589	15%
Total	5,089	3,532	4,571	6,133	5,817	14%

E. Top 5 Sources of Total Harbor Referrals (2023 Total Referrals – 10,725)



1. Historical Statistics (2019-2023)

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
School	2,271	1,570	2,455	3,576	3,651	61%
CCSD PD	2,548	842	1,801	3,011	2,829	11%
Parent or Guardian	1,748	1,243	1,795	2,071	2,077	19%
LVMPD	1,281	972	992	1,179	1,249	-2%
Henderson PD	275	164	181	323	305	11%
Others	337	345	542	610	614	82%
Total	8,460	5,136	7,766	10,770	10,725	27%

XIV. Truancy Prevention Outreach Program

TPOP's mission is to develop a coordinated plan of action that will engage/re-engage youth and families. Develop a resource map of existing services and collaborate with CCSD personnel. The Program will work to eliminate chronic absenteeism by focusing on underlying youth and family needs. This section details the statistics on the youths served by TPOP and Total Referrals.

Youth Served in this section is defined as youth referred to TPOP and was enrolled in any TPOP program.



A. TPOP Youth Served by Gender (2023 Youth Served – 3,572)

	2021	2022	2023	21-23%
Female	625	1,497	1,708	173%
Male	747	1,750	1,862	149%
Unknown	3	4	2	-33%
Total	1,375	3,251	3,572	160%

B. TPOP Youth Served by Ethnicity/ Race (2023 Youth Served – 3,572)



Asian/Pacific Islander -3%	
■Black - 24%	
∎Hispanic - 46%	
□Other - 18%	
■White - 9%	

1. Historical Statistics (2021-2023)

	2021	2022	2023	21-23%
Asian/Pacific Islander	36	74	95	164%
Black	331	772	876	165%
Hispanic	680	1,464	1,630	140%
Other	190	641	633	233%
White	138	300	338	145%
Total	1,375	3,251	3,572	160%

F. TPOP Youth Served by Age (2023 Youth Served- 3,572)



1. Historical Statistics (2021-2023)

	2021	2022	2023	21-23%
8-	150	598	923	515%
9	45	172	252	460%
10	49	184	242	394%
11	51	170	219	329%
12	94	248	266	183%
13	108	285	322	198%
14	192	369	379	97%
15	219	452	388	77%
16	216	410	351	63%
17+	271	456	329	21%
Total	1,375	3,251	3,572	160%

G. Top 10 Zips of TPOP Youth Served

	2021	2022 2023		21-23%
89030	100	257	442	342%
89115	62	347	348	461%
89110	96	182	265	176%
89121	114	198	189	66%
Unknown	94	228	151	61%
89031	32	175	186	481%
89108	74	155	147	99%
89101	78	117	109	40%
89156	16	124	149	831%
89122	58	104	104	79%
Others	656	1,371	1,489	127%
Total	1,375	3,251	3,572	160%



H. Top 5 Sources of Total TPOP Referrals (2023 TPOP Referrals - 7,460)

	2021	2022	2023	21-23%
School	3,396	4,426	6,496	91%
Child Protective Services	297	1,210	405	36%
Harbor	232	642	329	42%
TPOP	435	137	170	-61%
Community Referral	111	12	22	-80%
Others	18	40	38	111%
Total	4,489	6,467	7,460	66%

XV. Summary

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	19-23%
Referrals						
Referrals Received	11,733	5,817	4,639	5,963	9,412	-20%
Number of Juveniles Involved	7,421	4,044	3,382	4,297	7,094	-4%
Average Referral per Juvenile	1.6	1.4	1.4	1.4	1.3	-16%
Number of Petitions Filed by DA	4,553	2,506	2,244	2,817	3,322	-27%
Direct Filed Youth	31	36	44	13	16	-48%
Referrals Prior to Direct Files (Avg)	8.12	8.68	7.24	6.71	5.71	-30%
Juveniles Certified as Adult	57	35	59	54	81	42%
Referrals Prior to Certification (Avg)	8.69	6.50	8.61	6.10	5.13	-41%
Booking & Detention						
Juveniles Brought to Booking	5,564	3,131	2,533	3,022	4,113	-26%
Bookings / Referrals (%)	47%	54%	55%	51%	44%	-3
New Detention Placements	2,533	1,621	1,330	1,603	2,077	-18%
Percent Detained (%)	46%	52%	53%	53%	50%	4
Average Daily Detention Population	131	96	76	112	167	27%
Average Length of Stay (Days)	19	23	20	25	29	53%
Juveniles at Detention at Year End	117	66	77	111	182	56%
SMYC		-				-
Juveniles Placed at SMYC	230	151	110	140	165	-28%
Refs Prior to SMYC Placement (Avg)	6.16	6.04	5.05	3.77	3.67	-40%
Average Daily SMYC Population	92	68	51	60	71	-23%
Average Length of Stay (Days)	159	154	155	164	163	3%
Juveniles at SMYC at Year End	100	58	57	60	80	-20%
Youth Committed to DCFS						
Juveniles Committed to DCFS	189	152	135	150	187	-1%
Referrals Prior to DCFS (Avg)	8.90	9.05	8.38	6.77	5.14	-42%
Formal Probation						
Youths Dispo'd to Formal Probation	1,880	1,181	815	1,257	1,426	-24%
Refs Prior to Formal Probation (Avg)	3.01	3.22	2.42	1.60	1.46	-51%
*Average Formal Probation Caseload	1,797	1,770	1,439	1,708	1,940	8%
Average Probation Status Length (Days)	432	421	491	394	449	4%
The Harbor Served Youth	5,089	3,532	4,571	6,133	5,817	14%
TPOP Served Youth	-	-	1,375	3,251	3,572	-

* Based on formal probation referral statuses

This report was produced in April 2024 by the Applications, Research & Technology (ART) Unit Department of Juvenile Justice Services Clark County, Nevada 601 N. Pecos Road Las Vegas, Nevada 89101-2408 Phone: (702) 455-5210